

Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: RRC action on Rules 21 NCAC 10 .0208 and .0214

-----Original Message-----

From: kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com [mailto:kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com]

Sent: Friday, February 19, 2016 4:09 PM

To: Reeder, Amanda J <amanda.reeder@oah.nc.gov>

Subject: Re: RRC action on Rules 21 NCAC 10 .0208 and .0214

Thank you, Amanda.

Please be advised that at its meeting this morning, the Board voted to withdraw its amendment to Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0208 ACUPUNCTURE. We request that the rule remain in its current form, under which the educational requirement for a chiropractor to practice acupuncture is 200 hours, rather than the proposed 300 hours.

Regards,

Vance

---- "Reeder wrote:

> Vance:

>

> I just wanted to let you know that at its meeting this morning, the RRC approved Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0214, and continued the extension of the period of review for Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0208.

>

> I look forward to hearing from you regarding Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0208. Please note, the Commission will need to take action on this Rule at its March 17, 2016 meeting, so I will need to hear from you at least a week before the RRC meeting.

>

> Please let me know if you have any questions or concerns.

>

> Amanda

>

>

> Amanda J. Reeder

> Counsel to the Rules Review Commission NC Office of Administrative

> Hearings 919/ 431-3079

>

> E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law N.C.G.S. Chapter 132 and may be disclosed to third parties.

>

>

> _____

>

> Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized state official.

Burgos, Alexander N

Subject: FW: Correspondence from the RRC

-----Original Message-----

From: kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com [mailto:kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com]

Sent: Wednesday, February 03, 2016 11:06 AM

To: Reeder, Amanda J <amanda.reeder@oah.nc.gov>

Cc: tomr.sullivan@gmail.com; sides@triad.rr.com

Subject: RE: Correspondence from the RRC

Amanda,

I'm glad we had a chance to talk yesterday. Please be advised of the status of the three pending chiropractic board rules as follows:

1. 21 NCAC 10 .0106 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. The board hereby withdraws this rule.
2. 21 NCAC 10 .0208 ACUPUNCTURE. The board requests that no action be taken by RRC at its Feb. 18 meeting. We still need to discuss whether we wish to proceed with this rule, and a decision will be made at our Feb. 19 meeting (rescheduled from Jan. 22 due to snow).
3. 21 NCAC 10 .0214 RANDOM OFFICE INSPECTIONS. My understanding is that our conversation yesterday satisfied your concerns, and you are now in a position to recommend that the commission approve the Jan. 21 version of this rule. I cannot be in Raleigh on Feb. 18, but the chiropractic board will be represented by Tom Sullivan, our new ED.

Thanks, and I will be back in touch with you about the acupuncture rule.

Vance

---- "Reeder wrote:

> Vance,

>

> Thank you for your email. I reviewed the language and can foresee questions as to whether the Secretary will be bound by the physician's opinions. Is this the intent?

>

> I certainly understand the Board needed to reschedule due to the weather, and ask that you please keep me updated regarding the other two rules.

>

> Thank you.

>

> Amanda

>

>

> Amanda J. Reeder

> Counsel to the Rules Review Commission NC Office of Administrative

> Hearings 919/ 431-3079

>

> E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law N.C.G.S. Chapter 132 and may be disclosed to third parties.

>
> -----Original Message-----
> From: kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com [mailto:kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com]
> Sent: Tuesday, January 26, 2016 2:03 PM
> To: Reeder, Amanda J <amanda.reeder@oah.nc.gov>
> Cc: Burgos, Alexander N <alexander.burgos@oah.nc.gov>
> Subject: Re: Correspondence from the RRC
>
> Good afternoon, Amanda.
>
> Please allow me to update our previous communications. Bad weather forced cancellation of Friday's Board meeting, and it has not yet been rescheduled. However, as I said earlier, I am reasonably certain that the Board will vote to withdraw the new conflict of interest rule and the amendment to our existing acupuncture rule.
>
> Attached please find a revised office inspection rule with a sentence added to Paragraph (b). As you can see, I have attempted to address the concern raised by one Commissioner that the Board Secretary might at some point be a citizen member rather than a physician member.
>
> In your judgment, if this change needs further refinement, please let me know.
>
> I will be away from my office for the next three days but will be back in the office on Monday, Feb. 1.
>
> Thanks for your assistance.
>
> Vance
>
> ---- "Reeder wrote:
>> Please acknowledge receipt of this email
>>
>> Mr. Kinlaw:
>> Please find attached a letter from RRC confirming the extension of the period of review for Rules 21 NCAC 10 .0106 and .0208, and objection to Rule 21 NCAC .0214.
>>
>> Please let me know if there any questions or concerns regarding this email.
>>
>> Amanda
>>
>> Amanda J. Reeder
>> Counsel to the Rules Review Commission NC Office of Administrative
>> Hearings 919/ 431-3079
>>
>> E-mail correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law N.C.G.S. Chapter 132 and may be disclosed to third parties.
>>
>>
>> _____
>>
>> Email correspondence to and from this address may be subject to the North Carolina Public Records Law and may be disclosed to third parties by an authorized state official.

1 Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0214, published in NCR vol. 30:04 at 461, is adopted with changes to read as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 10 .0214 RANDOM OFFICE INSPECTIONS**

4 (a) Random Inspections Authorized. The Board shall conduct periodic inspections of chiropractic offices
5 for the purpose of assessing compliance with ~~the chiropractic practice act~~ G.S. 90, Article 8 and the ~~rule~~
6 Rules of the Board. Inspections shall be conducted as follows:

7 (1) Physicians shall be selected for office inspection randomly and not based on any
8 suspicion of wrongdoing.

9 (2) The Board shall provide at least ~~thirty~~ 30 days' advance written notice to a physician
10 whose office is to be inspected. Notice shall include a copy of the checklist to be used by
11 the inspector.

12 (3) Pursuant to G.S. 93B-8.2, The the inspector shall not ~~be a competitor practice~~
13 chiropractic in the same geographic market as of the physician whose office is to be
14 inspected.

15 (4) The inspector shall use a ~~published,~~ standardized checklist provided by the Board to
16 assess whether the physician's office complies with statutory standards governing
17 cleanliness and sanitation, condition of equipment, patient records, readability of X-rays,
18 signage, and display of licenses and certificates. The inspector and shall record a grade of
19 "Pass" or "Fail" for each item on the ~~checklist. The inspector checklist, shall~~ leave a copy
20 of the graded checklist with the ~~physician~~ physician, and file the original with the
21 Secretary of the Board.

22 (5) The inspector shall examine individual patient records only ~~for the purpose of evaluating~~
23 ~~formatting, legibility,~~ to assess legibility and completeness. For purposes of this Rule, a
24 "complete" patient record includes a medical history, examination findings, diagnosis,
25 and notes for each office visit. The inspector shall not draw any conclusions as to the
26 quality of care or reasonableness of charges based on his or her examination of patient
27 records.

28 (6) If the inspector issues a failing grade on any checklist item, the physician shall have ~~thirty~~
29 ~~days to correct the problem and request re-inspection.~~ 15 days from the date of inspection
30 to submit to the Board staff a plan for making corrections. Thereafter, the physician shall
31 have an additional 30 days to submit proof that corrections have been made.

32 (b) Appeal of Failing Grade. A physician whose office receives a failing grade on any checklist item may
33 appeal to the Secretary of the Board. The Secretary shall ~~have the authority to reverse the failing grade for~~
34 ~~good cause shown, or grant additional time within which to correct the problem.~~ review the inspector's
35 findings and reverse any failing grade that, in the Secretary's opinion, was improvidently issued. If the
36 Secretary is not a chiropractic physician, the Secretary shall consult with a physician member of the Board
37 before ruling on the appeal. If the Secretary concludes that a failing grade was deserved, the Secretary shall

1 have authority to grant additional time to make corrections upon the physician's showing that corrections
2 cannot be completed within the time provided under Paragraph (a)(6) of this Rule. ~~If the physician~~
3 negligently or willfully fails to correct a problem after exhausting his or her appeal to the Secretary, the
4 physician shall be subject to disciplinary action by the Board. No physician shall be subject to disciplinary
5 action by the Board as the result of a random office inspection unless the physician willfully or through
6 inaction fails to correct a deficiency cited by the inspector and affirmed by the Secretary.

7 (c) ~~Exemption.~~ Exemptions. A physician whose office has been inspected pursuant to this Rule shall not be
8 subject to further random office inspections for a period of three years following the inspection. In addition,
9 the following categories of licensee shall not be subject to this Rule:

10 (1) Physicians who do not treat any patients. This category includes chiropractic radiologists
11 who only interpret X-rays supplied by other physicians, professional reviewers who only
12 scrutinize treatment records supplied by other physicians, and instructors who only teach;

13 (2) Physicians who practice only in hospitals;

14 (3) Physicians who practice only in jurisdictions outside North Carolina; and

15 (4) Physicians whose practices are exclusively *locum tenens*.

16 (d) Inspections for Cause. This ~~rule~~ Rule shall not apply to office inspections ordered by the Secretary of
17 the Board for cause as part of the investigation and prosecution of suspected disciplinary violations.

18
19 *Authority G.S. 90-142; 90-154; 90-154.2; 90-154.3;*

20 *Effective February 1, 2016*



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
OFFICE OF ADMINISTRATIVE HEARINGS

Mailing address:
6714 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-6700

Street address:
1711 New Hope Church Rd
Raleigh, NC 27609-6285

January 21, 2016

Vance Kinlaw
Board of Chiropractic Examiners
Sent via email to kinlawyer@triad.twcbc.com

Re: Extension of the Period of Review for Rules 21 NCAC 10 .0106 and .0208.
Objection to Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0214.

Mr. Kinlaw:

At its meeting today, the Rules Review Commission extended the period of review for Rules 21 NCAC 10 .0106 and .0208 and objected to Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0214 in accordance with G.S. 150B-21.10.

The Commission extended the period of review for Rules .0106 and .0208 in response to a request from the Board to extend the period in order to allow the agency to determine whether to move forward with rulemaking for these Rules.

Pursuant to G.S. 150B-21.13, when the Commission extends the period of review, it is required to approve or object to rules or call a public hearing on the same within 70 days.

The Commission objected to Rule .0214, finding that the language in Paragraph (b) that referred to the "Secretary's professional judgment" is ambiguous.

Please respond to the objection in accordance with the provisions of G.S. 150B-21.12. If you have any questions regarding the Commission's actions, please let me know.

Sincerely,

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel

Administration
919/431-3000
fax: 919/431-3100

Rules Division
919/431-3000
fax: 919/431-3104

Judges and
Assistants
919/431-3000
fax: 919/431-3100

Clerk's Office
919/431-3000
fax: 919/431-3100

Rules Review
Commission
919/431-3000
fax: 919/431-3104

Civil Rights
Division
919/431-3036
fax: 919/431-3103

RRC STAFF OPINION

Please Note: This communication is either 1) only the recommendation of an RRC staff attorney as to action that the attorney believes the Commission should take on the cited rule at its next meeting, or 2) an opinion of that attorney as to some matter concerning that rule. The agency and members of the public are invited to submit their own comments and recommendations (according to RRC rules) to the Commission.

AGENCY: Board of Chiropractic Examiners

RULE CITATION: 21 NCAC 10 .0106

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

- Approve, but note staff's comment
- X Object, based on:
 - X Lack of statutory authority
 - Unclear or ambiguous
 - X Unnecessary
 - Failure to comply with the APA
- Extend the period of review

COMMENT:

Staff recommends objection to this Rule based upon lack of statutory authority and necessity.

Staff is not aware of any statutory authority within the purview of the Board that allows it to restrict the ability of its members to serve as officers, directors, district presidents, or committee chairs of private trade associations. The authority cited by the Board for this Rule is G.S. 90-142, which states:

§ 90-142. Rules and regulations.

The State Board of Chiropractic Examiners may adopt suitable rules and regulations for the performance of their duties and the enforcement of the provisions of this Article.

However, the qualifications of Board members are set by statute, and the appointments are made by the Governor and General Assembly.

§ 90-139. Creation and membership of Board of Examiners.

(a) The State Board of Chiropractic Examiners is created to consist of eight members appointed by the Governor and General Assembly. Six of the members shall be practicing doctors of chiropractic, who are residents of this State and who have actively practiced chiropractic in the State for at least eight consecutive years immediately preceding their appointments; four of these six members shall be appointed by the Governor, and two by the General Assembly in accordance with G.S. 120-121, one each upon the recommendation of

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel

the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. **No more than three members of the Board may be graduates of the same college or school of chiropractic.** The other two members shall be persons chosen by the Governor to represent the public at large. **The public members shall not be health care providers nor the spouses of health care providers.** For purposes of Board membership, "health care provider" means any licensed health care professional and any agent or employee of any health care institution, health care insurer, health care professional school, or a member of any allied health profession. For purposes of this section, a person enrolled in a program to prepare him to be a licensed health care professional or an allied health professional shall be deemed a health care provider. For purposes of this section, any person with significant financial interest in a health service or profession is not a public member.

§ 90-140. Selection of chiropractic members of Board.

The Governor and the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall appoint chiropractic members of the Board for terms of three years from a list provided by the Board, and the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the Speaker of the House of Representatives shall appoint a chiropractic member of the Board for a term of two years from a list provided by the Board. For each vacancy, the Board must submit at least three names to the Governor, President Pro Tempore of the Senate and Speaker of the House.

The Board shall establish procedures for the nomination and election of chiropractic members. These procedures shall be adopted under Article 2A of Chapter 150B of the General Statutes, and notice of the proposed procedures shall be given to all licensed chiropractors residing in North Carolina. These procedures shall not conflict with the provisions of this section. Every chiropractor with a current North Carolina license residing in this State shall be eligible to vote in all such elections, and the list of licensed chiropractors shall constitute the registration list for elections. Any decision of the Board relative to the conduct of such elections may be challenged by civil action in the Wake County Superior Court. A challenge must be filed not later than 30 days after the Board has rendered the decision in controversy, and all such cases shall be heard de novo. (1917, c. 73, s. 2; C.S., s. 6711; 1933, c. 442, s. 1; 1963, c. 646, s. 1; 1979, c. 108, s. 2; 1981, c. 766, s. 2; 1983, c. 717, s. 106; 1987, c. 827, s. 1; 1995, c. 490, s. 11.1; 2000-189, s. 6.)

Staff does not believe the Board has statutory authority to create the restriction proposed by this Rule by determining that serving as an officer on those associations is a conflict of interest for serving on the Board. Further, staff notes that if the General Assembly or Governor were to appoint a member to the Board that is serving in one of the positions named in this Rule, that individual would have to resign the post or decline the appointment. Staff does not believe that the agency has the authority to effectively nullify those appointments if the individual did not wish to resign from the post.

Staff is aware that G.S. 90-142 allows the Board to adopt rules "for the performance of [the Board's] duties" but staff does not believe that statute is broad enough to allow the Board to adopt this Rule.

Staff notes that in its Submission for Permanent Rule form, the agency states that the intent of the Rule is to allow the Board to qualify for limited state antitrust immunity following the Supreme Court ruling in North Carolina State Board of Dental Examiners v. Federal Trade Commission (135 S.Ct. 1101). Staff understands the concerns of the Board, but does not believe this rationale creates the authority needed to adopt the Rule.

Further, staff is unsure if this even qualifies a rule, rather than a bylaw or policy for internal management. Staff notes G.S. 150B-2(8a) states:

(8a) "Rule" means any agency regulation, standard, or statement of general applicability that implements or interprets an enactment of the General Assembly or Congress or a regulation adopted by a federal agency or that describes the procedure or practice requirements of an agency. The term includes the establishment of a fee and the amendment or repeal of a prior rule. The term does not include the following:

a. Statements concerning only the internal management of an agency or group of agencies within the same principal office or department enumerated in G.S. 143A-11 or 143B-6, including policies and procedures manuals, if the statement does not directly or substantially affect the procedural or substantive rights or duties of a person not employed by the agency or group of agencies.

This Rule appears to state internal policy, affecting only the rights of Board members. Therefore, while staff does not believe that the agency has the authority to promulgate this Rule, staff also does not believe this would qualify as a rule, as it does not affect individuals outside of the Board.

Therefore, staff recommends objecting to this Rule for lack of statutory authority and necessity.

§ 90-139. Creation and membership of Board of Examiners.

(a) The State Board of Chiropractic Examiners is created to consist of eight members appointed by the Governor and General Assembly. Six of the members shall be practicing doctors of chiropractic, who are residents of this State and who have actively practiced chiropractic in the State for at least eight consecutive years immediately preceding their appointments; four of these six members shall be appointed by the Governor, and two by the General Assembly in accordance with G.S. 120-121, one each upon the recommendation of the President Pro Tempore of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of Representatives. No more than three members of the Board may be graduates of the same college or school of chiropractic. The other two members shall be persons chosen by the Governor to represent the public at large. The public members shall not be health care providers nor the spouses of health care providers. For purposes of Board membership, "health care provider" means any licensed health care professional and any agent or employee of any health care institution, health care insurer, health care professional school, or a member of any allied health profession. For purposes of this section, a person enrolled in a program to prepare him to be a licensed health care professional or an allied health professional shall be deemed a health care provider. For purposes of this section, any person with significant financial interest in a health service or profession is not a public member.

(b) All Board members serving on June 30, 1981, shall be eligible to complete their respective terms. No member appointed to the Board on or after July 1, 1981, shall serve more than two complete consecutive terms, except that each member shall serve until his successor is chosen and qualifies. The initial appointment of the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the President of the Senate shall be for a term to expire June 30, 1986, and the initial appointment of the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the Speaker of the House of Representatives shall be for a term to expire June 30, 1985, subsequent appointments upon the recommendation of the President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall be for terms of three years, subsequent appointments upon the recommendation of the Speaker of the House of Representatives shall be for terms of two years.

(c) The Governor and General Assembly, respectively, may remove any member appointed by them for good cause shown. In addition, upon the request of the Speaker of the House of Representatives or the President Pro Tempore of the Senate concerning a person appointed by the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the Speaker of the House of Representatives or the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, respectively, the Governor may remove such appointee for good cause shown, if the request is made and removal occurs either (i) when the General Assembly has adjourned to a date certain, which date is more than 10 days after the date of adjournment, or (ii) after sine die adjournment of the regular session. The Governor may appoint persons to fill vacancies of persons appointed by him to fill unexpired terms. Vacancies in appointments made by the General Assembly shall be in accordance with G.S. 120-122. (1917, c. 73, s. 1; C.S., s. 6710; 1979, c. 108, s. 1; 1981, c. 766, s. 1; 1983, c. 717, ss. 100-104; 1995, c. 490, s. 11; 1999-405, s. 3; 1999-431, s. 3.9; 2000-181, s. 2.7(a); 2005-421, s. 2.7(b).)

§ 90-140. Selection of chiropractic members of Board.

The Governor and the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the President Pro Tempore of the Senate shall appoint chiropractic members of the Board for terms of three years from a list provided by the Board, and the General Assembly upon the recommendation of the Speaker of the House of Representatives shall appoint a chiropractic member of the Board for a term of two years from a list provided by the Board. For each vacancy, the Board must submit at least three names to the Governor, President Pro Tempore of the Senate and Speaker of the House.

The Board shall establish procedures for the nomination and election of chiropractic members. These procedures shall be adopted under Article 2A of Chapter 150B of the General Statutes, and notice of the proposed procedures shall be given to all licensed chiropractors residing in North Carolina. These procedures shall not conflict with the provisions of this section. Every chiropractor with a current North Carolina license residing in this State shall be eligible to vote in all such elections, and the list of licensed chiropractors shall constitute the registration list for elections. Any decision of the Board relative to the conduct of such elections may be challenged by civil action in the Wake County Superior Court. A challenge must be filed not later than 30 days after the Board has rendered the decision in controversy, and all such cases shall be heard de novo. (1917, c. 73, s. 2; C.S., s. 6711; 1933, c. 442, s. 1; 1963, c. 646, s. 1; 1979, c. 108, s. 2; 1981, c. 766, s. 2; 1983, c. 717, s. 106; 1987, c. 827, s. 1; 1995, c. 490, s. 11.1; 2000-189, s. 6.)

§ 90-142. Rules and regulations.

The State Board of Chiropractic Examiners may adopt suitable rules and regulations for the performance of their duties and the enforcement of the provisions of this Article. (1919, c. 148, s. 4; C.S., s. 6714; 1967, c. 263, s. 2.)

REQUEST FOR TECHNICAL CHANGE

AGENCY: Board of Chiropractic Examiners

RULE CITATION: 21 NCAC 10 .0106

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT: Thursday, January 14, 2016

NOTE WELL: This request when viewed on computer extends several pages. Please be sure you have reached the end of the document.

The Rules Review Commission staff has completed its review of this rule prior to the Commission's next meeting. The Commission has not yet reviewed this rule and therefore there has not been a determination as to whether the rule will be approved. You may call this office to inquire concerning the staff recommendation.

In reviewing these rules, the staff determined that the following technical changes need to be made:

In the Introductory Statement, please note that if you make changes to the text of the Rule, it will be "with changes"

In Paragraph (a), please insert a comma after "president" on line 5.

On line 6, define "primarily"

Also on line 6, please insert a comma after "promote"

In Paragraph (b), line 9, "Rule" should be capitalized. Since it was published capitalized, you do not need to show any changes, but should simply revert to how it was published.

In the History Note, please include an effective date for this Rule.

Please retype the rule accordingly and resubmit it to our office at 1711 New Hope Church Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609.

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel
Date submitted to agency: December 30, 2015

1 21 NCAC 10 .0106, published in NCR vol. 30:04 at 461, is adopted without changes to read as follows:

2

3 **21 NCAC 10 .0106 CONFLICTS OF INTEREST**

4 (a) Private Trade Associations. During his or her term of service on the Board of Examiners, a member of
5 the Board shall not serve as an officer, director, district president or committee chair of any private trade
6 association that exists primarily to advance, promote and protect the commercial and political interests of
7 the chiropractic profession in this State. Such private trade associations include the North Carolina
8 Chiropractic Association.

9 (b) Membership Allowed. Paragraph (a) of this rule shall not prohibit a member of the Board from
10 becoming or continuing to be an ordinary member of a private trade association and exercising the rights
11 and privileges of membership while simultaneously serving on the Board.

12

13 *Authority G.S. 90-142*

REQUEST FOR TECHNICAL CHANGE

AGENCY: Board of Chiropractic Examiners

RULE CITATION: 21 NCAC 10 .0208

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT: Thursday, January 14, 2016

The Rules Review Commission staff has completed its review of this rule prior to the Commission's next meeting. The Commission has not yet reviewed this rule and therefore there has not been a determination as to whether the rule will be approved. You may call this office to inquire concerning the staff recommendation.

In reviewing these rules, the staff determined that the following technical changes need to be made:

In the Introductory Statement, please note that if you make changes to the text of the Rule, it will be "with changes"

I recommend making this a two Paragraph Rule. Paragraph (a) would be lines 4 through 9. Paragraph (b) would be lines 9-14.

On lines 5 and 10, the use of the term "minimum" is not preferred in Rule, as the Rule sets the minimum standards. Do you feel you need to retain it here?

On line 6, please insert a comma after "acupuncture"

For the sentence beginning on line 7, are you saying that the coursework shall be offered by a college accredited pursuant to G.S. 90-143(b) as either part of the curriculum leading to the degree or the post-graduate level? If so, I think it makes the sentence clearer to put the "college accredited pursuant to G.S. 90-143(b)" at the front of the sentence.

If you change this to a two Paragraph Rule, please change "above-described" on line 11 to "the coursework set forth in Paragraph (a) of this Rule."

On line 11, I recommend ending the sentence after "coursework" (or the language suggested above.) Then state "This requirement of ..."

What are you saying in the last sentence? Won't a licentiate certified prior to 2019 be bound by the requirement for 200 hours of coursework as set forth in the first sentence of the Rule? Or are you trying to say that they are not required to get 300 hours? I think this can be made clearer.

In the History Note, please include an amended effective date for this Rule.

Please retype the rule accordingly and resubmit it to our office at 1711 New Hope Church Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609.

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel
Date submitted to agency: December 30, 2015

1 21 NCAC 10 .0208, published in NCR vol. 30:04 at 461, is amended without changes to read as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 10 .0208 ACUPUNCTURE**

4 Until July 1, ~~2008~~, 2019, in order to perform acupuncture, a licentiate or applicant for licensure ~~must~~ shall
5 first certify to the Board that he or she has completed a minimum of ~~100~~ 200 hours' coursework in
6 acupuncture-meridian therapy, including sterile needle technique, theory of acupuncture and differential
7 diagnosis of clinical indications. This coursework ~~must~~ shall be offered as either part of the curriculum
8 leading to the Doctor of Chiropractic degree or at the post-graduate level, and by a college accredited
9 pursuant to G.S. 90-143(b). Beginning July 1, ~~2008~~, 2019, in order to perform acupuncture, a licentiate or
10 applicant for licensure ~~must~~ shall first certify to the Board that he or she has completed a minimum of ~~200~~
11 300 hours of the above-described coursework; provided, that this requirement of ~~200~~ 300 hours'
12 coursework shall apply only to a licentiate or applicant for licensure whose initial certification date falls on
13 or after July 1, ~~2008~~. 2019. Any licentiate certified prior to July 1, ~~2008~~ 2019 may continue to perform
14 acupuncture without obtaining additional education.

15
16 *History Note:* Authority G.S. 90-142; 90-143; 90-151;
17 Eff. February 1, 2004;
18 Amended Eff. July 1, 2006.

RRC STAFF OPINION

Please Note: This communication is either 1) only the recommendation of an RRC staff attorney as to action that the attorney believes the Commission should take on the cited rule at its next meeting, or 2) an opinion of that attorney as to some matter concerning that rule. The agency and members of the public are invited to submit their own comments and recommendations (according to RRC rules) to the Commission.

AGENCY: Board of Chiropractic Examiners

RULE CITATION: 21 NCAC 10 .0214

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

- Approve, but note staff's comment
- Object, based on:
 - Lack of statutory authority
 - Unclear or ambiguous
 - Unnecessary
 - Failure to comply with the APA
 - Extend the period of review

COMMENT:

Staff recommends objecting to this Rule based upon a lack of statutory authority and ambiguity.

In this Rule, the Board is proposing to conduct periodic inspections of chiropractic offices. Staff is not aware of any statutory authority for the Board to conduct these inspections. Staff further notes that the statutes governing the Board only give the Board authority to license individuals and not offices.

Further, staff believes the Rule is ambiguous as written. Subparagraph (a)(5) states that the inspection of patient records shall be restricted to evaluating them for "formatting, legibility and completeness." Staff does not know what these terms mean in this context. Further, there is nothing in the Rule that indicates what else, if anything, will be reviewed during these inspections.

In addition, in Paragraph (b), the Board's Secretary is given the authority to reverse a failing grade "for good cause shown" but there is no guidance of what this phrase means. In addition, the Secretary can extend the period of time to correct the problem; however, the timeframe is set in Subparagraph (a)(5) of the Rule. Therefore, the language in Paragraph (b) creates a waiver but does not include guidance on how this waiver will be granted.

REQUEST FOR TECHNICAL CHANGE

AGENCY: Board of Chiropractic Examiners

RULE CITATION: 21 NCAC 10 .0214

DEADLINE FOR RECEIPT: Thursday, January 14, 2016

The Rules Review Commission staff has completed its review of this rule prior to the Commission's next meeting. The Commission has not yet reviewed this rule and therefore there has not been a determination as to whether the rule will be approved. You may call this office to inquire concerning the staff recommendation.

In reviewing these rules, the staff determined that the following technical changes need to be made:

In the Introductory Statement, please note that you should underline "with changes"

Because this is an adoption, the way to show changes made after publication is set forth in Rule 26 NCAC 02C .0405(b)(1). Here, you will remove underlining from the entire rule and only underline language added after publication. In addition, please strike the language that you are proposing to delete after publication.

On lines 4, 25, 30, and 32, I believe there are too many spaces between the (x) and the beginning of the sentence.

In (a), line 5, what is the "chiropractic practice act"? Is it G.S. 90, Article 8? Should this be capitalized?

On line 5, please capitalize "Rules"

In (a)(2), do you need to retain "at least" on line 9? I suspect you do, but wanted to check.

In (a)(3), so that I understand – the Board will not employ inspectors? It will use licensees? I take it the language that the individual cannot be a competitor is to satisfy 93B-8.2?

§ 93B-8.2. Prohibit licensees from serving as investigators.

No occupational licensing board shall contract with or employ a person licensed by the board to serve as an investigator or inspector if the licensee is actively practicing in the profession or occupation **and is in competition with other members of the profession or occupation over which the board has jurisdiction.** Nothing in this section shall prevent a board from (i) employing licensees who are not otherwise employed in the same profession or occupation as investigators or inspectors or for other purposes or (ii) contracting with licensees of the board to serve as expert witnesses or consultants in cases where special knowledge and experience is required, provided that the board limits the duties and authority of

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel

Date submitted to agency: December 30, 2015

the expert witness or consultant to serving as an information resource to the board and board personnel."

How will it be determined who is a competitor?

In (a)(4), what is in this standardized checklist? Generally, the contents of any forms or checklists are required to be in Rule or law. Are the contents of the checklist in rule or law? If so, can you provide a cross-reference in the Rule? Also, how does one know whether to "pass" or "fail"? Is there training of the inspectors?

In (a)(5), what does "formatting, legibility and completeness" mean?

Also on line 17, insert a comma after "legibility"

On line 18, please state "his or her examination..."

On line 21, please replace "fifteen" with "15" (See Rule 26 NCAC 02C .0108(9)).

On line 23, please replace "thirty" with "30"

The language on lines 21-22 are entirely new. Is this optional? Or is the physician required to do this? Did the language change due to public comments? And what proof will be accepted? And the proof will not require re-inspection?

In (b), line 26, should "Secretary" be capitalized? The term is not consistently capitalized in the Board's other rules, so I wanted to check.

So that I understand (b), the Secretary has complete discretion to reverse the grade or grant additional time that waives the timeframes set forth in Subparagraph (a)(5) of the Rule? What does "for good cause" shown mean? And if the Secretary does not grant the appeal, the timeframes in (a)(5) control? What is the mechanism and timeframe for making this appeal to the Secretary?

On lines 28, define "negligently or willfully"

In (d), line 32, "Rule" should be capitalized.

In the History Note, please include an effective date for this Rule.

Please retype the rule accordingly and resubmit it to our office at 1711 New Hope Church Road, Raleigh, North Carolina 27609.

Amanda J. Reeder
Commission Counsel
Date submitted to agency: December 30, 2015

1 Rule 21 NCAC 10 .0214, published in NCR vol. 30:04 at 461, is adopted with changes to read as follows:

2
3 **21 NCAC 10 .0214 RANDOM OFFICE INSPECTIONS**

4 (a) Random Inspections Authorized. The Board shall conduct periodic inspections of chiropractic
5 offices for the purpose of assessing compliance with the chiropractic practice act and the rules of the Board.

6 Inspections shall be conducted as follows:

7 (1) Physicians shall be selected for office inspection randomly and not based on any
8 suspicion of wrongdoing.

9 (2) The Board shall provide at least thirty days' advance written notice to a physician whose
10 office is to be inspected.

11 (3) The inspector shall not be a competitor of the physician whose office is to be inspected.

12 (4) The inspector shall use a published, standardized checklist provided by the Board and
13 shall record a grade of "Pass" or "Fail" for each item on the checklist. The inspector shall
14 leave a copy of the graded checklist with the physician and file the original with the
15 Secretary of the Board.

16 (5) The inspector shall examine individual patient records only for the purpose of evaluating
17 formatting, legibility and completeness. The inspector shall not draw any conclusions as
18 to the quality of care or reasonableness of charges based on his examination of patient
19 records.

20 (6) If the inspector issues a failing grade on any checklist item, the physician shall have ~~thirty~~
21 days to correct the problem and request re-inspection. **fifteen days from the date of**
22 **inspection to submit to the Board staff a plan for making corrections. Thereafter, the**
23 **physician shall have thirty days to request re-inspection or submit proof that corrections**
24 **have been made.**

25 (b) Appeal of Failing Grade. A physician whose office receives a failing grade on any checklist item
26 may appeal to the Secretary of the Board. The Secretary shall have the authority to reverse the grade for
27 good cause shown, or grant additional time within which to correct the problem. If the physician
28 negligently or willfully fails to correct a problem after exhausting his or her appeal to the Secretary, the
29 physician shall be subject to disciplinary action by the Board.

30 (c) Exemption. A physician whose office has been inspected pursuant to this Rule shall not be subject
31 to further random office inspections for a period of three years following the inspection.

32 (d) Inspections For Cause. This rule shall not apply to office inspections ordered by the Secretary of
33 the Board for cause as part of the investigation and prosecution of suspected disciplinary violations.

34
35 *Authority G.S. 90-142*